# CODE OF REGULATIONS

OF

### HUDSON COMMUNITY

### IMPROVEDENT CORPORATION

### ARTICLE I.

## Membership

Section 1. The trustees named by the incorporators of the Corporation shall be the first members and all persons thereafter elected by the members shall upon such election become members of the Corporation.

Section 2. Any regular member may resign at any time by notice in writing delivered to any officer of the Corporation other than himself. The resignation of a member shall constitute resignation by such person as a trustee and as an officer.

#### ARTICLE II.

## Meetings of Members

)

Section 1. There shall be an annual meeting of the members of the Corporation in the month of February, at such date, time and place (which shall be within Summit County, Ohio) as may be fixed by the Board of Trustees, provided that if such Board does not fix such date, time and place by the fifteenth day of February, then the President of the Corporation shall do so.

Section 2. Special meetings of the members may be called and the time, date and place (which shall be within Summit County, Ohio) of the meetings specified, by the President, the Executive Committee, or any three members of the Board of Trustees.

Section 3. A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the members.

Section 4. Any action which may be taken at a meeting of the members at which a quorum is present may be taken by a majority affirmative vote of the members present at such meeting. Any member may authorize another member by written proxy to vote for him on one or more questions voted on at a meeting of the members. Upon authorization by, and pursuant to procedure prescribed by the Board of Trustees, votes may be cast by mail in any election to be held, or as to any other matter which is to be acted upon at a meeting of members. Members voting at a meeting by proxy or by mail on any one or more questions, in accordance with this section, shall be deemed to be present at the meeting for the purposes of determining the presence of a quorum. Votes cast by proxy or mail shall be counted as if the members giving such proxy or mailing such votes were present at the meeting and cast their votes thereat.

Section 5. A written or printed notice of every annual or special meeting of the members, stating the time, place and purpose thereof, shall be given to each member entitled to vote thereat and to each member entitled to notice as provided by law, which notice may be given to a member in person or may be mailed by first class mail to his last address appearing on the books of the Corporation at least five (5) days before any such meeting. Any member may waive in writing, either before or after the holding of such meeting, any notice required to be given by law or under these regulations; and by attendance at any meeting without protesting the lack of proper notice, or by voting, including by proxy or mail, at any meeting, a member shall be deemed to have waived notice thereof.

)

### ARTICLE III.

# Board of Trustees

Section 1. The Board of Trustees shall be the governing board of the Corporation and shall consist of not less than three nor more than twenty-five Trustees as such number is fixed by the members from time to time. Trustees shall serve for one year terms except as otherwise hereafter provided. At any time during which the Corporation is acting as the designated agent of one or more political subdivisions, in accordance with Chapter 1724, Revised Code of Ohio, not less than two-fifths of the Board of Trustees shall be composed of appointed or elected officers of such political subdivision or subdivisions, and at least one officer of each such political subdivision shall be a member of the Board of Trustees.

Section 2. A Trustee may be removed for good cause shown by the vote of ninety percent of the remaining members of the Board of Trustees or may resign at any time by notice in writing delivered to any officer of the Corporation other than himself.

Section 3. Except in the case of death, removal, or resignation, a Trustee shall serve until his successor has been elected. In the event of any vacancy caused by the death, removal or resignation of a Trustee or by the failure of the members to fill all the positions on the Board at the meeting at which the number of Trustees on the Board was fixed pursuant to Section 1 of this article, any such vacancy may be filled by the vote of a majority of the remaining Trustees.

(\_)

1

#### ARTICLE IV.

# Meetings of the Board of Trustees

Section 1. After each annual meeting of the members, or special meeting in lieu thereof, the newly elected Board of Trustees, if a quorum thereof be present, shall hold an organization meeting at the same place for the purpose of electing officers and transacting any other business. Notice of such meeting need not be given. If for any reason, said organization meeting is not held at such time, a special meeting for such purpose shall he held as soon thereafter as practicable.

Section 2. Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held at such times and places within Summit County, Ohio, as shall be provided for in by-laws or resolutions adopted by the Board of Trustees, and no notice of such meeting need be given unless otherwise provided in the by-laws or resolutions adopted by the Board of Trustees.

Section 3. Special meetings may be called by the President, the Executive Committee or any ten per cent of the members of the Board of Trustees. The notice of any special meeting shall set forth the time, date and place thereof (which shall be within Summit County, Ohio) and the person or persons calling such meeting shall cause such notice to be given. Notice of each such meeting shall be given to each Trustee in writing, by personal delivery, first class mail, telegram or cablegram, and such writing shall be delivered, mailed, telegraphed or cabled not less than three (3) days prior to such meeting; provided however, that such notice shall be deemed to have been waived by the Trustees attending such meeting without protesting the lack of proper notice, or by voting at any such meeting and may be vaived in writing or

by telegram or cablegram by any Trustee either before or after such meeting. Unless otherwise limited in the notice thereof, any business may be transacted at any special meeting.

Section 4. At any meeting of the Board of Trustees a quorum shall consist of a majority of the Trustees in office at the time.

Section 5. Except as otherwise provided in this Code of Regulations, any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Board of Trustees may be taken by a vote of a majority of the Trustees present at such meeting, provided that a quorum is present.

Section 6. Any action which may be authorized or taken at a meeting of the Board of Trustees may be authorized or taken without a meeting with the affirmative vote or approval of, and in a writing or writings signed by, all of the members of the Board of Trustees then in office.

### ARTICLE V.

### Officers

Section 1. The Board of Trustees shall elect a President, a Vice

President, a Secretary, a Treasurer and an Executive Director, and such other officers
as the Board of Trustees may see fit. The President and Vice President shall be, and
the other officers may, but need not, be chosen from the members of the Board of

Trustees. Any two of the offices may be held by one person, but in any case in which
the action of more than one officer is required, no one person shall sit in more than
one capacity.

Section 2. Any officer may resign at any time by notice in writing delivere to any officer of the Corporation other than himself.

Section 3. Except in the case of death, removal or resignation, an elected officer shall serve until his successor has been elected. In the event of the death, removal or resignation of an elected officer (other than the President if there is a Vice President in office at the time), the Board of Trustees shall elect a successor for the balance of the unexpired term of such officer. In the event of the death or resignation of the President (if there is a Vice President in office at the time), the Vice President shall assume the office of President for the balance of the unexpired term, and shall be deemed to have resigned the office of Vice President.

# ARTICLE VI.

# Duties of Officers

Section 1. The President shall preside at meetings of the members of the Board of Trustees, may designate the date, time and place of meetings of the members and Board of Trustees as provided herein, may execute all authorized instruments, including without limitation contracts, bonds, notes, debentures, deeds, mortgages and other obligations in the name of the Corporation and shall perform such other duties as the Board of Trustees may require.

Section 2. In case of the absence or disability of the President, or when circumstances prevent the President from acting, the Vice President, if any, shall perform all of the duties of the President, and in such case shall have all of the powers and obligations of the President, and any such instruments so executed by the Vice President shall be as valid and binding as though executed by the President. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as the Board of Trustees may require.

Section 3. The Secretary shall take and keep records of all meetings of the members and of the Board of Trustees, conduct such correspondence of the Corporation as may be designated by the President, perform the usual duties of his office and perform such other duties as the Board may require.

Section 4. The Treasurer shall be the custodian of all funds and securities in other corporations and similar property belonging to the Corporation and shall do with the same as may be ordered by the Board of Trustees. He shall keep accurate financial accounts and hold the same open for examination of the Trustees. On the expiration of his term of office he shall turn over to his successor or to the Board of Trustees, all property, books, papers and moneys of the Corporation in his hands.

Section 5. The Board of Trustees may also elect for a term of one year one or more Assistant Secretaries, and one or more Assistant Treasurers, who shall perform the duties of the Secretary and Treasurer, respectively, in the case of the absence or disability of such Secretary or Treasurer, together with such other duties as the Board of Trustees may from time to time prescribe. The power of such officers to execute all authorized deeds, mortgages, bonds, notes, contracts, and other obligations in the name and on behalf of the Corporation shall be coordinate with like powers of the Secretary and Treasurer, respectively, and any such instrument so executed by any Assistant Secretary or Assistant Treasurer shall be as valid and binding as though executed by the Secretary or Treasurer, as the case may be. Such other officers as the Board of Trustees may elect, shall have such powers and duties as the Board of Trustees may from time to time prescribe.

Section 6. The Executive Director shall be the chief administrative officer of the Corporation. He shall be responsible for supervising the property, business and affairs of the Corporation subject to the direction of the Board of Trustees. He may execute all authorized instruments, including without limitation contracts, bonds, notes, debentures, deeds, mortgages and other obligations in the name of the Corporation and shall perform such other duties as the Board of Trustees may require.

Section 7. The Board of Trustees is authorized to delegate the duties of any officer to any other officer and generally to control the action of the officers and to require the performance of duties in addition to those mentioned herein.

Section 8. Any officer, if required by the Board of Trustees, shall give bond in such form and with such security as the Board of Trustees from time to time may require for the faithful performance of his duties.

Section 9. The Board of Trustees shall select depositories for the safekeeping of the moneys of the Corporation and establish the procedure for deposit and withdrawal of such moneys. In lieu of such deposit, the Board of Trustees from time to time may authorize investment of moneys of the Corporation as are not then required in any obligations which a county or municipal corporation is authorized by the applicable sections of the Ohio Revised Code to invest its moneys.

## ARTICLE VII.

#### Committees

Section 1. The Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees shall be subject to the following provisions:

a) At any meeting of the Board of Trustees, it may designate an Executive Committee consisting of such number

of Trustees as the Board from time to time determines.

The President shall be a member of and shall serve as chairman of the Executive Committee.

- b) Except as otherwise provided by the Board of Trustees, the Executive Committee shall meet at such times and places as it shall determine. The call of such meetings and the giving of notice thereof shall be in manner established by such Committee. At any meeting of the said Committee a quorum shall consist of a majority of the members, but the affirmative vote of a majority of all members of the Committee shall be necessary to the taking of any action by the Committee.
- c) The Executive Committee may adopt by-laws or resolutions to provide for the conduct of its affairs provided that such by-laws or regulations shall not be contrary to the by-laws or regulations or resolutions adopted by the Board of Trustees, this Code of Regulations or the Articles of Incorporation.
- d) The said Committee shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees and during the intervals between meetings of the Board shall possess and may exercise such powers of the Board as may be delegated from time to time by the Board to it, provided that the Executive Committee shall not be empowered to fill vacancies in the Board of Trustees or offices of the Corporation, nor to fill vacancies in or add to its own membership.
- e) The Committee shall report its actions at the next meeting of the Board of Trustees.

Section 2. The Board of Trustees may create other committees of the Board to consist of not less than three Trustees, and may delegate to such committees such powers and duties of the Board as it shall deem appropriate.

Except as otherwise provided by the Board of Trustees, each such committee shall regulate its own procedure.

### ARTICLE VIII

# Indemnification of Trustees and Officers

Section 1. Each member of the Board of Trustees and officer of the Corporation (and his heirs, executors and administrators) who is made a party to any litigation, action, suit or proceeding (whether civil, criminal, or administrative) by reason of his being or having been a trustee or officer of the Corporation or a trustee, director or officer of any other corporation which he served at the request of the Corporation, shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation against the reasonable expenses actually incurred by him in connection with the defense of such litigation, except in relation to the following matters:

- a) Those as to which he shall finally be adjudged in such litigation to be liable because of dereliction in the performance of his duties as such trustee, director or officer, or
- b) Those which have resulted in a judgment in favor of the Corporation and against him, or which are settled by any payment by him to the Corporation.

Except in cases where above clause (a) or clause (b) applies, "expenses" shall be deemed to include fines and penalties imposed on such person, and amounts paid upon a plea of nolo contendere or similar plea or in compromise or settlement of the litigation or in satisfaction of judgments, if, and only if, such indemnification, and the amounts to be indemnified against, are approved as being reasonable in the circumstances by (i) the vote of a majority of the Trustees of the Corporation in office if such majority are not involved in any such litigation, or (ii) the vote of a majority of the members of the Corporation excluding for the purposes hereof the members involved in such litigation, or (iii) a court of competent jurisdiction. The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of other rights to which such person, his heirs, executors or administrators, may be entitled.

# ARTICLE IX.

## Amendments to Code of Regulations

Section 1. This Code of Regulations may be amended by assent thereto in writing signed by two-thirds of the members, or by a majority vote at any meeting of the members, provided that the notice of said meeting stated the consideration of the amendment to be the purpose or a purpose of the meeting.

ollowing members present:			
lir. liner		Mrs. White	
Mr. MoCracken		Mr. Held	
Nr. Boxers		Mr. Rills	
Mr. Prinns	<u> </u>		
hat Mr. Borers be hat Mr. Borers be shall serve until a suirst meeting of the Trustees incussion, the roll was taken	LOTTOMINE COS	next animal meeting.	y Mr. Phines retion and co at the After
Mr. Miner	Am	Mrs. White	_ Are
		Mr. Held	•
Mr. Rogara	_ Abetain .	Mr. Hilla	Are
Mr. Phipps			
is washing office of and 1718.	Mr. Phin	be elected floor	by stary lected the next
A motion was made by that M the corporation and that he dansumes office at the fire much meeting.	Mr. Phin ird. White shall serve t t meeting of t	be elected floor	the next
A motion was made by himer that he the corporation and that he id assumes office at the fire much meeting.  After discussion, the	Mr. Phim re. White shall serve t t meeting of t	be elected floor ntil a successor is a the Trustees following	the next
A motion was made by Miner that he that he corporation and that he d assumes office at the fire muni meeting.  After discussion, the Miner	Mr. Phimirs. White shall serve to testing of the roll was called t	and seconded be a seconded be a seconded from the first seconder is a seconder in the first seconder in the seconder i	the next  a follows:  Abstain
A motion was made by  Miner that he the corporation and that he d assumes office at the fire muni meeting.  After discussion, the	Mr. Phinter White shall serve to the meeting of the Poll was called Ava.	sed seconded be elected door notil a successor is a she Trustees following led and the vote was a live. White	the next  as follows:  Abstair  Ave.
A motion was made by Hiner that he the corporation and that he d assumes office at the fire must meeting.  After discussion, th http://www.hoccooken	Mr. Phim let White shall serve t t meeting of t e roll was cal Ava	and seconded be elected door ntil a successor is a he Trustees following led and the vote was a live. White	the next  as follows:  Abstair  Ave.
A motion was made by  Miner that he the corporation and that he d assumes office at the fire must meeting.  After discussion, th  Nr. Miner  Nr. Mograchen  Nr. Rogers  Nr. Phipps  The Code of Regulation reporation was submitted for a  Bild and seconded by the Midson Community Improve	Mr. Phim Iri. White Iri. White Ishall serve to the seall was cal e roll was cal Ava. Ava. Ava. Ava. Ava. Ava. Ava. Ava.	and seconded be elected door ntil a successor is a he Trustees following led and the vote was a Mrs. White Mr. Held Mr. Hills con Community Improvem a Board. A motion was me that the Code of Roman be adopted.	Abstair  Ave.  Ave.  Ave.  Ave.  Ave.  ant  made by relations
A motion was made by Hiner that he I the oorporation and that he d assumes office at the fire muni meeting.  After discussion, the Nr. Miner  Nr. Mogra  Nr. Rogers  Nr. Phipps  The Code of Regulation reporation was submitted for a Bald and seconded by the Hidson Community Improve	Mr. Phinter. White shall serve to the state of the Hade sproval to the Mr.	and seconded be elected deer nill a successor is a the Trustees following led and the vote was a live. White live. Held he. Hills led Community Improves a Board. A motion was an that the Code of Rollon be adopted.	the next  a follows:  Abstain  Ave.  Ave.  Ave.  ant made by gulations  follows:
A motion was made by  Miner that the that our portion and that he d assumes office at the fire must meeting.  After discussion, th  Mr. Mocreoken  Mr. Rogers  Mr. Phipps  The Code of Regulation poration was submitted for a  Bold and seconded by the Hudson Community Improve  After discussion, the	Ave	and seconded be elected door intil a successor is a the Trustees following led and the vote was a lors. White let. Held let. Held let. Held let. Held let. Hold let a Board. A motion was in that the Code of Roman be adopted.  In and the vote was as lets. White	the next  a follows:  Abstain  Ave.  Ave.  Ave.  ant made by gulations  follows:
A motion was made by Miner that he I the corporation and that he d assumes office at the fire muni meeting.  After discussion, the Mr. Miner  Mr. Rogers  Mr. Rogers  Mr. Phipps  The Code of Regulation reporation was submitted for a Held and seconded by the Haden Community Improve  After discussion, the Mr. Miner	Mr. Phim re. White re. White restall serve in t meeting of it e roll was cal  Ava  Ava  Ava  Ava  Ava  Ava  Ava  A	and seconded be elected deer nill a successor is a the Trustees following led and the vote was a live. White live. Held he. Hills led Community Improves a Board. A motion was an that the Code of Rollon be adopted.	the next  a follows:  Abstain  Ave.  Ave.  Ave.  ant  made by gulations  follows:
A motion was made by  Miner that the that our portion and that he d assumes office at the fire must meeting.  After discussion, th  Mr. Mocreoken  Mr. Rogers  Mr. Phipps  The Code of Regulation poration was submitted for a  Bold and seconded by the Hudson Community Improve  After discussion, the	Ave	and seconded be elected door intil a successor is a the Trustees following led and the vote was a lors. White let. Held let. Held let. Held let. Held let. Hold let a Board. A motion was in that the Code of Roman be adopted.  In and the vote was as lets. White	Ave.  April  Ave.  Ave.

A plan for the industrial, commercial, distribution, and research development of the Village of Budson, Chio, was considered by the Board. After discussion, it was moved by Mrs. White and seconded by Mrs. White and seconded by Mrs. White and seconded by Mrs. Hiner that the plan, (in the form of an agreement) attached bereto and marked "Edibit A", be adopted by the Budson Commential Improvement Corporation as its proposal for the industrial, commercial, distribution and research development of the Village of Budson, Chio, that such plan be presented to the Council of said Village of Budson, Chio, for its consideration, and that if said Council of the Village of Budson accepts such plan and designates the Budson Community Improvement Corporation as its Agent for industrial, commercial, distribution and research development, based upon the plan proposed by this Corporation and stacked hereto and marked "Exhibit A", this Corporation hereby socapts such designation and suthorizes the President and Secretary to assente the agreement situached hereto and marked "Exhibit A", on behalf of the Corporation. Pollowing the motion, there was a recess.

There was submitted to the Board, plans and specifications for an industrial and distribution project to be financed from the proceeds of an issue of Villaga of Hudson, Chio, Industrial Development First Mortgage Revenue Boads in the aggregate principal ascent of \$2,000,000, which project calls for the acquisition, by purchase and construction, of real and personal property, comprising an industrial facility located within the boundaries of the insuer to be used as an office building to provide suitable space for administrative offices for lease and subsequent sale to The Mohant Rubber Company.

After the discussion of the proposed project, it was moved by Mr. MacCracken and seconded by Mr. Mills that the following resolution be adopted:

A BESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT THE VILLAGE OF MIDSON-THE MODARE MINERS COURSEY PROJECT TO BE PURSON-THE MODARE MINERS COURSEY PROJECT TO BE PURSON-THE THE LIBRARY OF VILLAGE OF MUDBON THURSTRAL DEVELOPMENT FURST MONTONE WITH THE FIRST FOR INDUSCRIAL, DISTRIBUTION AND MEMBRACE MIXAL, CONSENCIAL, DISTRIBUTION AND MEMBRACE MIXAL, CONSENCIAL, DISTRIBUTION AND MEMBRACE MIXAL, CONSENCIAL, DISTRIBUTION AND MEMBRACE MIXAL OF MUDBON MEMBRACES ADOPTED BY THIS CORPORATION, AND AUTHORITHING THE MUDBON AND DELIVERY OF A CERTIFICATION OF MUDBON MEMBRACES.

VIMIMAS, this Corporation haratofure adopted a plan for the industrial, enmercial, distribution and research development of the Village of Hudson, Chie; and

MHRMAS, this Corporation has heretofore determined to accept designation by the Village of Hadson, Ohio, as its agent, pursuant to Chapter 1724 of the Chio Hevised Code, for said industrial, commercial, distribution and research development of the Village, if such designation is based upon an acceptance by the Council of said Village of Hadson of said plan heretofore adopted and to be submitted to said Council;

HOW, THERMOOKS, HE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Rudson Community Emprovement Corporation:

Section 1. That it is hereby found and determined that the project to be financed from the proceeds of the \$2,000,000 Village of Hadson, Ohio, Industrial Development First Mortgage Revenue Bonds to be authorised by ordinance of the Council of said Village, is a Project in accordance with Chapter 165 of the Chio Revised Code, and that said Project is in accordance with, and will further, the plan for industrial, commercial, distribution and research development of the Village of Hadson, Ohio, as set forth in "Exhibit A" attached hereto.

Section 2. That, if and when this Corporation is designated by the Council of the Village of Rudson, Ohio, as its agent as aforesaid, and if and when the agreement between said Village of Hudson and this Corporation is executed by the proper parties, the Secretary of this Corporation is hereby authorised and directed to execute and deliver to the Village of Hudson a certification evidencing the determination of this Board of Trustees set forth in Section 1 hereof.

follows:	After discussion, the ro	ll was ca	liled and the vote thereon was	M			
	Mr. Miner	_AYA_	Mors. White	_AYE			
	Mr. HagCracken	Ave	Mr. Held .	Are			
	Mr. Nogera	_EYA_	Mr. Hills	Ave			
~	Mr. Phipps	AYE		_Are			
The aforesaid resolution was adopted.							
It was moved by Mr. MacCracken and seconded by Mr. Hills that the meeting be adjourned. The motion was approved. The meeting was adjourned.							

The undersigned hereby certifies that the above is a true and expet copy of excepts of the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Bulson Community Improvement Corporation hold on December 4, 1972.

Marion H. White, Secretary

Musea Community Improvement Corporation